ZBA Minutes September 15, 2022

Zoning Board of Adjustment
27 School Street
HILLSBOROUGH, NH
September 15, 2022

DATE APPROVED: 10/24/22

TIME: 5:00 p.m. —5:55 p.m.

CHAIRPERSON: Roger Racette

VICE CHAIRPERSON: Russell Galpin

MEMBERS: Lucy Pivonka, John Segedy, Meg Curtis-Sauer
PLANNING DIRECTOR: Robyn Payson
ALTERNATES: Mark Bodanza,

EXCUSED Lucy Pivonka, Meg Curtis

Public Present: William Walden

CALL TO ORDER:

Roger Racette called the meeting to order at 5:00pm

Roger Racette asked everyone to stand for the Pledge of Allegiance

Roger Racette called the roll. Alternate Mark Bodanza was seated in place of Lucy Pivonka.

Public Hearing

Variance

45 Madison Circle (Map 12 Lot 4-7)

William and Sheri Walden

Roger Racette stated that there were only four ZBA members present. He said the applicant had
the right to continue the hearing because if the vote was split 2 to 2, the application would be
denied. He said if there were five members the chance of approval would be 20% higher for
approval.

Mr. Walden said he wanted to proceed with four members.

Mr. Walden presented his application (See attached)

Roger Racette reviewed the five criteria.

A. Granting the proposed Variance will not be contrary to the public interest because:

Mr. Walden said that the garage will be built on private property, and it isn’t abutting any public
land. It is not injurious to the public.

Page 1 of 7



ZBA Minutes September 15, 2022

B. Granting of the proposed Variance will observe the spirit of the Hillsborough Zoning
Ordinance because:

Mr. Walden said that the garage will increase the value of the home and the utility of the
property. He said he will be able to store lawn equipment and things like that inside the garage.

Roger Racette explained that the “spirit of the ordinance” in regard to setbacks is to prevent
overcrowding.

Mr. Walden said he definitely didn’t want there to be overcrowded because there are already a lot
of houses on that street. Maintaining the buffer is part of the reason that they are not taking trees

down. He said they are trying to stay out of the setback as much as possible.

Roger Racette said the seven-foot encroachment does not put them very close to any existing
structure.

John Segedy said there is a possibility that the shed on the abutting property does not meet the
setback.

Roger Racette said that was not what was being addressed at this meeting.
C. Granting the proposed Variance will do substantial justice because:

Mr. Walden said the garage is going to increase the value of the house and the land in general.
He said in his mind if it increases the value of one house, the tide raises all ships.

D. Granting the proposed Variance will not diminish the values of the surrounding properties
because:

Mr. Walden said that this goes back to not having things in the yard. He said he is also
maintaining the buffer between the houses.

Roger Racette said there is nothing that is going to be going on that is out of the ordinary. There
will be storage and the parking of vehicles.

Mr. Walden said that is correct.

John Segedy said it should be indicated that this is his personal assessment of the value being
increased or decreased and there is no evidence of estimates by a real estate person presented.

Roger Racette said that in a case like this they can use their own judgement.

John Segedy agreed and said they can make that finding or they can make a finding that no
evidence was presented.

E. Literal enforcement of the provisions of the ordinance will result in an “unnecessary hardship”
because:

Page 2 of 7



ZBA Minutes September 15, 2022

Roger Racette said “unnecessary hardship” usually means that you can’t make reasonable use of
the property.

Mr. Walden said that the property is livable as it is. He said that the original placement of the
house is what is determining the process here.

Roger Racette said they are attaching the garage to a legally existing structure.

Mr. Walden said the garage is not out of character with the neighborhood. Other houses have
added garages and they look like they are close to the lot lines.

Roger Racette opened the public hearing to the public. There being no one from the public
present he closed the public hearing.

There was discussion about the new requirement by the legislature to develop “Findings of Fact”
to go with each approval or disapproval. The Board moved on to discuss and vote on each
criteria and develop the “Findings of Fact”. (See Notice of Decision, attached for the “Findings
of Fact”)

A. Granting the proposed Variance will not be contrary to the public interest because:
(Findings of Fact were discussed and are included in the Notice of Decision, attached)

Roger Racette called for a vote on the meeting of the criteria:
Russ Galpin-yes, Mark Bodanza-yes, John Segedy-yes, Roger Racette-yes. The criteria passed.

B. Granting of the proposed Variance will observe the spirit of the Hillsborough Zoning
Ordinance because:

Roger Racette said the purpose of this criteria is to prevent overcrowding, so it will not result in
structures being close together, so it won’t negatively impact safety and safety equipment.

Mark Bodanza said he felt it would be in line with the spirit of the zoning ordinance because
there will be no overcrowding and it is consistent with what they are trying to accomplish. He
said it is not going to impact negatively

(Findings of Fact were discussed and are included in the Notice of Decision, attached)

Roger Racette called for a vote on the meeting of the criteria:
Russ Galpin-yes, Mark Bodanza-yes, John Segedy-yes, Roger Racette-yes. The criteria passed.

C. Granting the proposed Variance will do substantial justice because:

Roger Racette said in most cases if you satisfy criteria “B” you satisfy criteria “C”.

Page 3 of 7



ZBA Minutes September 15, 2022

John Segedy said he didn’t think “C” satisfies “B” because there might be substantial justice
doing something even though it doesn’t meet “B”.
(Findings of Fact were discussed and are included in the Notice of Decision, attached)

Roger Racette called for a vote on the meeting of the criteria:
Russ Galpin-yes, Mark Bodanza-yes, John Segedy-yes, Roger Racette-yes. The criteria passed.

D. Granting the proposed Variance will not diminish the values of the surrounding properties
because:

Roger Racette said there is no evidence or expert testimony that it will have a negative impact on
the surrounding property values. He said ZBA members use their judgment.

(Findings of Fact were discussed and are included in the Notice of Decision, attached)

Roger Racette called for a vote on the meeting of the criteria:
Russ Galpin-yes, Mark Bodanza-yes, John Segedy-yes, Roger Racette-yes. The criteria passed.

E. Literal enforcement of the provisions of the ordinance will result in an “unnecessary hardship”
because:

Roger Racette said what this usually means is if you don’t get some relief, you can’t make
reasonable use of the property. He said he would say that the as built conditions of the property
limits where you can put the garage.

John Segedy said where the garage is proposed is the only location on the property that it can be
built.

Roger Racette said that all of the properties are narrow in that area.
John Segedy said they are all narrow but not all of them are that close.
(Findings of Fact were discussed and are included in the Notice of Decision, attached)

Roger Racette called for a vote on the meeting of the criteria:
Russ Galpin-yes, Mark Bodanza-yes, John Segedy-yes, Roger Racette-yes. The criteria passed.

Roger Racette called for a vote on the Variance
John Segedy made a motion to grant the Variance. Russ Galpin seconded the motion.

Russ Galpin-yes, Mark Bodanza-yes, John Segedy-yes, Roger Racette-yes. The Variance was
approved.

Page 4 of 7



ZBA Minutes September 15, 2022

New Business

Roger Racette said he wanted to discuss the Board members needing to be recognized by the
Chairman before they speak. He said John Segedy wanted that to apply to him as well. He said
he was fine with that.

Robyn Payson said she would like to check in to that to see if it is something that has to be done.
John Segedy said it may not have to be done, but neither does being recognized before speaking.
The Rules of Procedure say that anyone who wants to speak needs to be recognized by the Chair.

Roger Racette said he didn’t mind.

John Segedy said he just wants it to be fair and there is some discretion the Chair has in getting
the meeting going. He said the only person he sees being questioned about it is him.

Roger Racette said John did have a habit of speaking without being recognized.

John said it was because he wanted to have a discussion. He said it was working fine until it was
brought up.

Russ Galpin said the only problem with speaking out is in a contentious issue you can have two
people trying to speak out at the same time which is the purpose of recognizing somebody in the
first place. Russ said he thought it was handled correctly at this meeting, but the Chairman is not
accustomed to having to recognize himself, and the tendency is to speak without being
recognized.

Roger Racette said if that is what the Board wants, he can recognize himself when he speaks.

Mark Bodanza said on the initial inquiry about starting the meeting and the initial inquiry about
the applicant it is not necessary for him to recognize himself because he is running the meeting.
However, if there’s questions that need to be then brought up after the presentation, then the
recognition gives some order. He said he wanted to vocalize that it is a bit challenging for him is
when there is an applicant or audience, and we are then challenging each other about not
recognizing that member. He said he thinks that can be reserved for after the meeting,

Roger Racette agreed that should not be done. He said the Board should always keep their issues
until after the meeting is done. He said it sounded like it is the opinion of the Board that the
Chairman recognize himself if he wants to ask a question.

Russ Galpin made a motion to adjourn. John Segedy seconded the motion.

Meeting Adjourned 5:55 pm

Respectfully Submitted,
Robyn Payson, Planning Director

Page 5 of 7



ZBA Minutes September 15, 2022

Town of Hillsborough
Zoning Board of Adjustment
27 School Street

P.O. Box 7

Hillsborough, NH 03244
(603) 464-3877

NOTICE OF DECISION
September 15, 2022
Case 2022-05
Variance
45 Madison Circle (Map 12 Lot 4-7)
William and Sheri Walden

On September 15, 2022, the Zoning Board of Adjustment of the Town of Hillsborough opened a
public hearing on the application of William and Sheri Walden to obtain a Variance from the
Hillsborough Zoning Ordinance Table 3 “Setback, Coverage, and Building Height
Requirements” in the Residential Zone to allow for the construction of a 24°’x24” two car garage
extending 7’ into the 15 foot side setback

Based on the application and testimony given at the hearing and the site walk, the Board hereby
makes the following findings of fact:

1. The property is located at 45 Madison Circle
2. The applicants are the owners of record for the lot.
3. William Walden presented the application for the variance

4. The lot is located in the Residential Zoning District and the residential use is allowed by
right in the district.

5. A two-car garage is a reasonable accessory use to a single-family home.
6. Granting the proposed Variance will not be contrary to the public interest

There is no evidence it would be injurious to the public or negatively impact the welfare of
the community.

7. Granting of the proposed Variance will observe the spirit of the Hillsborough Zoning
Ordinance

Page 6 of 7



ZBA Minutes September 15, 2022

The incursion into the setback allows an adequate distance from the property line. The
garage is being attached to a legally existing structure. A 24°x24’ garage is in character
with the neighborhood.

8. Granting the proposed Variance will do substantial justice.
The minimal gain in enforcing the setback is outweighed by the benefit to the applicant.

9. Granting the proposed Variance will not diminish the values of the surrounding
properties.

There is no expert evidence or expert testimony to show that it would diminish the value of

the surrounding properties. There was testimony given by the applicant that it would not

diminish the value of the surrounding properties.

10. Literal enforcement of the provisions of the ordinance will result in an “unnecessary
hardship”

Due to the original site of the house and the addition of a mudroom, it would be a hardship to

place a 2-car garage within the setback.

On September 15, 2022, the Zoning Board of Adjustment voted to grant the Variance by a
vote of 4 in favor and 0 opposed to allow for the construction of a 24°x24” two car garage
extending 7’ into the 15-foot side setback

Date:

Roger Racette, Chairperson
Hillsborough Zoning Board of Adjustment

Page 7 of 7



